

HOUSING AUTHORITY USER MANUAL

Public and Indian Housing (PIH) Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC) Inventory Management System (IMS) Housing Inventory Module Housing Agency sub Module

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

Prepared by:

QSSI, Inc.





Shiva Information Technology Services, Inc.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Hor	ising Inventory	
1.1 H	lousing Agency	1-2
1.1.1	Housing Authority Tab	1-3
1.1.1	.1 List sub Tab	1-4
1.1.1	.2 Details sub Tab	
1.1.1	.3 Address sub Tab	1-8
1.1.1	.4 Inventory sub Tab	1-9
1.1.1	.5 Performance sub Tab	1-9
1.1.1	.6 Funding sub Tab	1-10
1.1.2	HUD Staff Tab	1-11
1.1.3	HA Contacts Tab	1-11
1.1.4	Temporary Office Tab	1-14
1.1.5	HA History Tab	1-15
1.1.6	Comments Tab	Error! Bookmark not defined.1-19
1.1.7	Reports Tab	1-16
1.1.7	'.1 HA Report	1-16
1.1.7	.2 HA Summary Report	1-17
1.1.7	4.3 HA Contact List Report	1-18
1.1.7	.4 HA Profile Report	1-19
1.1.8	Transferring to New development Numbers Tab	1-19
1.1.8	3.1 New Development Mapping Report sub Tab	
1.1.8	3.2 Duplicate Building Report sub Tab	1-21
1.1.9	Finance Tab	Error! Bookmark not defined.1-27

1.0 HOUSING INVENTORY



1.0 HOUSING INVENTORY

The **Housing Inventory** sub module allows the user to view PHA data, inventory of units that the PHA has at its disposal, and allows the user to propose buildings or units for removal. The **Housing Inventory** module includes three sub modules: **Housing Agency** sub module, **Development** sub module and the **Inventory Removals** sub module.

The **Housing Agency** sub module provides various types of data for PHAs. PHAs can use this sub module to enter, update and maintain their information. This sub module also allows the users to create new PHAs.

The **Development** sub module includes information about the inventory of units and buildings that PHAs manage. This sub module allows the users to view the current unit and building inventory, add new inventory items and delete inventory items that are no longer needed. The inventory information is provided at the development level, building level and unit level. Users can group any inventory items in the database based on various For example, units can be grouped by unit tenant status, submission status type, or unit designation.

The **Inventory Removals** sub module allows PHAs to remove certain items from their inventory by proposing those items for demolition / disposition. This sub module allows PHAs to fill the demo/dispo application, submit it with accompanying documentation, review the application and approve it. After the demo/dispo application is approved, inventory items that are subject to that application no longer are part of the PHA's inventory.



1.1 HOUSING AGENCY

The **Housing Agency** sub module is a primary resource for HA location, staff, and inventory data. It allows the user to view and print information for different Housing Agencies (see Figure 1).

Horay Adiaty Hi	ID Staff HA Contacts Designation HA	History Reports	han Dan har				
Ust							
Select View:	Field Office Li	V - Select					
HQ Office:	Public and Inc	lian Heaving					
IIQ Division:	PO Field Ope	etiona		Select			
IInb:	6HUDK LICE R	ack Hute 👻 Se	eleast.				
Field Office:	6EPILLITILL I	ROCK HUB OFFICE	243				
Housing Authority	Search Fillers						1
Program Type:	AL T						
Activity Status	Active -		LR Size		All	1.5.5	
	380-00.00V4 + 24532						Telreve
Records 1 to 100 o	4 14/						
HA Code a	HA Norme a	Temp Office +	Ргодінні Турн -	EVE 1	I ne Real Units +	Section 8 Units -	Activity Status +
AR002	North Little Rock Housing Authority	a 1973 - 5	Combined	06/30	1085	0	Y
AROOS	Fort Smith Housing Authority		Combined	09/90	280	0	Y
AR001	Little Rock Housing Authority		Combined	12/01	1193	0	Y
AROOS	Blyficville Housing Authority		Combined	09/90	941	0	Y

Figure 1: Housing Authority tab

Accessible via the **Housing Inventory** module in the Public and Indian Housing Information Center (PIC), this sub module contains the official listings for an HA's:

- Physical and Mailing Addresses
- Phone and Fax Numbers
- Assigned HUD Staff
- Contact Person Information (e.g. the **executive director's** email address)
- Occupancy Reports
- Historical Event Records

In addition, the **Housing Agency** sub module provides the functionality to Review, Approve, and Reject Occupancy Reports online (for HUD); and Generate customized reports on a variety of HA-related topics.

HA Sub module Data Sources

In order to understand the information in the **Housing Agency** sub module, it is important to know the sources that supply data displayed in this sub module. The following provides the data sources for the main categories of information presented in the sub module. Refer to the topic-specific sections of this manual for more extensive data source information.

HA Staff Supplied Data

The HA staff members are responsible for supplying and updating the following information as necessary:





- HA Addresses
- HA Phone and Fax Numbers
- Contact Information for People with HA Roles
- Occupancy Report Submissions

HUD Staff Supplied Data

The Hub and Program Center (PC) staff members are responsible for supplying the following information:

- HUD Staff Assignments
- Temporary Office Designations (when needed)
- Occupancy Report Approvals or Rejections

Funding Data

The **Housing Agency** sub module draws funding data from the HUD Central Accounting and Program System (HUDCAPS) and the Line of Credit Control System (LOCCS).

Inventory Data

The **Housing Agency** sub module draws the inventory data from PIC's **Development** sub module. The Section 8 Housing inventory data comes from HUDCAPS.

Performance Data

The Real Estate Assessment Center provides the HA performance data for the sub module. SEMAP supplies the Section 8 performance data.

Other HA Information Resources

Other HA resources in the HUD web space draw data from the Housing Agency sub module.

1.1.1 Housing Authority Tab

Privacy Act statement and Compliance Notice

Before the user proceeds to the **Housing Authority** tab, the user must to agree to the Privacy Act Statement and Compliance Notice. In order to do so, the user must read the legal agreement and click the **Agree** button (see Figure 2: Privacy Act Statement and Compliance Notice).

The Privacy Act protects sensitive data. Thus, if the user does not agree to comply with the Privacy Act Statement and Compliance Notice, the program would not display the data subject to the Privacy Act. If the user does not want to agree to comply with the Privacy Act and Compliance notice, the user can click **Decline**. In this case, the user can still access the pages in the sub module that requires the user to comply with the Privacy Act Statement; however, the program would not allow the user to access the data subject to Privacy Act.



Welcome HPIC32 HPIC32	4/13/2010/11:07:50 A V
IMPORTANT: Please read the following carefully.	
Legal Warning	
Missize of Federal Information through the HUD Secure Connection web site fails under the provi curvashing authorized across, alterations, damage, or destruction of information residing on Federa	sions of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1030. This law specifies penalties for I Conguters
Privacy Statement	
Information contained in this system is subject to the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. 552a, as ame persons in the conduct of official backness. Any individual responsible for manifestival disclosure a under law.	nded). Personal information contained in this system may be used only by authorized a misuse of personal information will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
Warning Natice	
Your compliance is requested because you may have access rights to certain parts of PIC system the parts of the PIC system not covered by the Privary Act as per your access privileges. All attendatabase irrespective of compliance status.	which are covered by the Privacy Act. You may choose to decline and can still access upts to access the information (ensempti by Privacy set) will be logged into the PIC

Figure 2: Privacy Act Statement and Compliance Notice

1.1.1.1 List sub Tab

When the user clicks the **Housing Agency** module, the program displays the tabs available within this sub module. The **Housing Authority** tab is displayed by default. The **Housing Authority** tab allows the user to select the Public Housing Agency (PHA) using the controls on the **List** sub tab (see Figure 1).

To select a PHA, the user must select the **Field Office HA** in the **Select View** list. The **TARC HA** option allows the user to view a list of TARC HAs. TARC HAs are "troubled" PHAs that have problems and need assistance or corrections performed on their processes and that are assigned to the Troubled Agency Recovery Center. Then, the user must select the appropriate Hub and Field Office in the respective lists. The user must leave the default selection (**PO Field Operations**) in the **HQ Division** list. After the user selects the appropriate Filed Office, the program displays the list of PHAs associated with the current Filed Office.

The user can also use the search options and look for PHAs that match certain search criteria. The search options in the **Housing Authority Search Filters** section allow the user to narrow the list of PHAs that the program displays (Figure 3).

The **Program Type** search list allows the user to view PHAs that participate in a certain program type. The available program types are **Combined**, **Low-Rent** and **Section 8**. If the user selects the **All** option, then the program will include all PHAs in the search results regardless of the program type.

The **Activity Status** list allows the user to select PHAs that are active or inactive in the system. The available options are **Active**, **Inactive** and **All**. If the user selects the **Active** option, then the program will include the PHAs with the activity status set to **Active**. If the user selects the **Inactive** option, then the program will include the PHAs with the activity status set to **Inactive**. If the user selects the **All** option, then the program will display the PHAs of both activity statuses.

The LR Size list allows the user to select only PHAs that have a certain number of tenants.



To apply the search criteria, the user must click **Retrieve**. When the user clicks **Retrieve**, the program lists the PHAs that matched the search criteria set by the user in form of a grid. The grid indicates the total number of records (PHAs) that matched the search criteria and the number of records displayed on the current page. The grid features the following columns:

The **HA Code** column displays the PHA code that consists of two letters and three digits. The two letters indicate the state where that PHA is located. And the digits indicate individual number of the PHA. The HA codes are displayed as links. If the user clicks on any HA code, the program will display the data pertaining to the PHA selected and divided by sub tabs.

The **HA Name** column displays the name of the Housing Authority.

The **Temp Office** column displays the temporary office that the PHA is assigned to for correction and improvement, if applicable.

The **Program Type** column displays the type of the subsidized housing program in which that PHA participates.

The **FYE** column displays the fiscal year end date for every PHA. The fiscal year end date displays the last day and month of the PHA's fiscal year. A PHA can have only one of the four FYEs: 03/31, 06/30, 09/30, 12/31.

The Low Rent Units column displays the number of public housing units for every PHA that have the **Initial Approval Completed** submission status type associated with them. The program derives this data from the **Development** sub module. The **Section 8 Units** column displays the number of units subject to the Section 8 program. The program derives this data from the **Development** sub module.

The Activity Status column indicates whether the PHA is active or inactive in the system.

The user can sort the PHA list based on the columns. If the user clicks the column heading, the program will list the PHA list based on the data provided in this column in an ascending or descending order. The red asterisk (*) indicates troubled PHAs that have been assigned to TARC for correction.

Autority Hi	© Staff HA Contacts Manager avy HA	History Reports	han Dan har				
Ust		20052 202	0.000000000				
Select View:	Field Office Ly	- Select					
HQ Office:	Public and Inc	Public and Indian Henning					
IQ Division:	PO Field Ope	PO Field Operations - Select					
Ind:	6HLDK (ite B	6H DK Lite Back Hab - Select					
Field Office:	6EPILLITLL I	ROCK HUB OFFICE	1.1				
lousing Authority	Search Hitlers						1
Program Type:	AL T						
Activity Status	Active 👻		LR Size		All	10.00	
	States of Control of C				27500		Retrieve
Records 1 to 100 o	1 14/						
HA Code a	HA Name a	Temp Office 4	Ргодінт Турн -	FYF 🖬	I ne Real Units +	Section 8 Units -	Activity Status +
AR002	North Little Rock Housing Authority	1.000	Combined	06/30	1085	0	Y
AR005	Fort Smith Hensing Authority		Combines	09/30	280	0	Y
AR00	Little Rock Housing Authority		Combined	12/01	1193	0	2
AROOS	Blyfacylle Housing Authority		Combined	09/30	941	0	Y

Figure 3: List sub tab of the Housing Authority tab



1.1.1.2 Details sub Tab

The HA Code for each HA in the list is a link. The user can click it to view the **Details** page for the selected HA. If the number of HAs in the list exceeds one page (generally more than 100 entries), the program displays a **Next** link to allow the user to view the remaining records. After clicking the **Next** link, the user can also click the **Previous** link to return to the previous page. After selecting the HA from the table, the user can view its information on all other sub module pages without having to identify it again. The **Details** sub tab displays the two main groups of data – the summary Housing Agency details and inventory.



Figure 4: Details sub tab of the Housing Authority tab

The **Housing Authority Details** section of the **Details** sub tab displays the summarized PHA data. It also allows the user to modify PHA data (see Figure 4) using the options in the **Modification Type** list. The user can modify the following type of PHA data: PHA details (name and contact information) (see Figure 5), program type, FYE (fiscal year end), and the activity status.

If the user wants to change the program type or FYE, the user can perform two types of changes: a change or a correction. When a PHA switches from one program type to another, e.g. from **Low Rent** to **Section 8**, then the user must select the **Program Type – Change** option. If the user needs to change the program type due to a clerical error, then the user must enter the **Program Type – Correction** option. When a PHA changes its FYE, e.g. from **06/30** to **09/30**, then the user must select the **FY End – Change** option.



If the user needs to change the fiscal year end due to a clerical error, then the user must enter the **FY End** – **Correction** option.

Housing Hub sout Hu	Consumer Temporary HA History	Reports.	Br. Co Bro Max		2000
List	net ils n	lilmess	Inventory	Performance	Funding
HQ Office:	Public and Indian Houst	ng .			
IIQ Division:	PO Field Operations				
Huði	/IIKNC Kansas City Hub				
Field Office:	7APH KANSAS CITY HUP	OFFICE			
Housing Authority Details					
HA CLA	18.003	_			
Commen Name	oben	1.000			
Contract of the	Alter Laure Canada an				
Format Point:	Autor and a start of the start				
Activity Addis	Low Boot				
HA FY End	03/31				
Phone: Number	641 . 947 . 8020 * _{Kal}				
Fax Number:	641 . 347 . 5146				
TTY Number					
Web Page Address:					
Emeril Additions	gyminikyovgzelr@dvrerzu				
* Designates a required field					
					Cancel Seve
					Concernant Concernant

Figure 5: Modify PHA Details page

After the user performs any changes, the user must click **Save** to save the changes or **Cancel** to exit the page without saving.

HA Codes

HA Codes for the Low Rent, Public Section 8, and Combined program types follow a simple format. This format consists of a post office abbreviation for the state or territory the HA is located in, and a three digit number. The number should continue the numerical ascent of the previous HA Code in the state or territory. There are no spaces or other characters separating these two components. Use a zero for a placeholder where needed. For example, the most recent HA Code assigned to a Delaware HA program is DE005. If the state creates another HA for one of those program types, the new HA Code would be DE006. The number should directly follow the most recent (highest) HA Code issued. PIC will not allow the user to create a new record if the HA Code has been used before. Even codes for defunct HAs cannot be used.

The **Housing Authority Unit Summary Information** section displays the summarized inventory information for the PHA derived from the **Development** sub module (see Figure 4). The summarized inventory information is displayed in form of a grid that provides the number of dwelling units, non-dwelling units and the total number of units that are part of the current PHA's inventory. The unit data for dwelling units is further broken down by unit designation i.e. elderly units and family units. The unit data for non dwelling units is further broken down into merged units and other types of non-dwelling units.

PIC distinguishes between 8 types of non-dwelling units: Administrative Uses, Merged Unit, MTW Neighborhood Services, Resident Amenities, Special Use – Anti Drug / Crime, Special Use – Other Resident Activities, Special Use – Self Sufficiency Activities, Unauthorized. For summarization purposes, the **Housing Authority Unit Summary Information** section displays only the combined count of non-dwelling units included in the current PHA's inventory. Further, the unit counts are broken down by unit designation and bedroom count.



1.1.1.3 Address sub Tab

The **Address** sub tab of the **Housing Authority** tab contains the current PHA's addresses (see Figure 6). PHAs can have two types of addresses, physical and mailing. A physical address represents the HA's location (for example, in an emergency, the rescue squad would arrive at the HA's physical address). If different from the physical address, a mailing address represents an alternate location where the HA's mail is delivered. For example, it can be a PO Box address. A mailing address is only required if an HA's correspondence is not sent to its physical address. The user can select the type of the address to view in the **Select Address Type** list. HA PIC users are responsible for keeping this page up-to-date.

Hat and Hat Built HA. Condexia Desca	M. Halary Reports Resulter Sor				
Int	Betals Address	Investory	Desformance	binding	
10) Office	Public and Indian Housing				
III) Distant	FO Field Operations				
Hindy	7 KNC Karasa City Lab				
Pield Ethiox	7APH KANSAS CITY HUD OFFICE				
Horsing Authority	Mana Man				
Address Information					
Select Address Type.	Brook -				Docto Appear
A Address Turne Th	Off C POLK Street #01				
Address Line 2:					
CutyLocally.	AP ION				
Course Name	CHOY				
State.	and the second se				
Zip Code	58030 ~ 2020				
Additional Address Information					
Rund Roote Code		Highway Contract Route Code.			
County Code	175	State Nomena Code	40		
Congress and Dastred Code:	5	Locality Code:	30		
MSA Code	188	MCD Code:	812-7		
Central Tract Code .	08040	Heek Fielder			
Centroid Match Code.	1.00	Gree Martels Code:			
Entity Code		Class Code			
ant trafer	44.07000	long trule	-04-402080		
Plane Code:	1814	1.04030300			

Figure 6: The Address sub tab of the Housing Authority tab

The user can also modify both types of PHA addresses. To modify an address, the user must select the desired option in the **Address Type** list and click the **Modify Address** link.

When the user clicks the **Modify Address** link, the program displays the PHA's address boxes (Figure 7). At this point, the user can enter a different address, of correct clerical errors. The user must fill the required boxes that are marked by an asterisk (*) before saving the changes. To save the changes, the user must click **Save**. If the user clicks **Cancel**, then the program will not retain the changes performed by the user.



And and y HUC Staff HA Con	tacta becquerary IA His	tory Reports N	in Des her	20 M M G	1-17-0-14-0
Ust	Detalls	Address	Inventory	Performance	Funding
IIQ Office:	Public and India	n Honsing			
HQ Division	PO Field Operat	lons			
Elizabe	7HKNC Kurous C	ity Hub			
Field Office	/APIT KANSAS C	TTY HUD OFFICE			
Housing Authority:	1A003-Afton				
Address Information					
Address Type:	Physical				
Address Line 1:	611 F POLK Stee	a 4 31			
Address Line 2					
County Name:	UNION				
City/Locality:	AFTON	1			
State:	(scene)				
Zip Code:	50830 20	26			
* Designates a required field					
					Cancel Sea

Figure 7: Modify Address page

1.1.1.4 Inventory sub Tab

The **Inventory** sub tab of the **Housing Authority** tab provides a summary of development and unit data for the selected HA (see Figure 8). PIC draws the data for the Low rent program type from the **Development** sub module and the Section 8 data from HUDCAPS.

Hundrey HUD Staff H.	A Contacts Temperary H	A History Reports View	Der Nos			
List	Details	Address	Inventory	Performance	Funding	
IIQ Office:	Public and h	ntion Housing				
HQ Division	PO Held Operations					
Hub:	Info: 7HKNC Konson City Hale					
Field Office	(APIL KANSA	AS CITY HUB OFFICE				
Housing Authority:	IA003 ABon					
Incentory Detail					1	
Low Rent Information						
Status	Developments	Units				
In Management	1	30				
in Development	30-	0				
Tabl	1	90	- 7			

Figure 8: The Inventory sub tab of the Housing Authority tab

1.1.1.5 Performance sub Tab

The **Performance** sub tab of the **Housing Authority** tab provides a summary of the selected HA's most recent Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS) Score (see Figure 9).



Autorty HUD stort	HR Contacts. Temporary Office	HA History Reports	Trans. co Marcillar Mar	22	10.000		
List	thetails	address	Inventory	Performance	Lunding		
HQ Office	Public at	td Indian Housing					
IQ Division:	PO Field	PO Field Operations					
Huite	TIKKC K	/TIKNC Kansas City Hub					
Field Office:	ТАРН КА	NSAS CITY HUB OFFICE					
Housing Authority	1A003 Att	on					
Peoformance List							
Records 1 to 1 of 1							
Assessment Date +	Assessment type	Assessment Sco	ore 🛪 👘 Designation 🖈	MOA Event or IP Event a	Temp Office 🔺		
11/27/2007	PILAS	93	Ilgh Performer	None Created	7APE1		

Figure 9: The Performance sub tab of the Housing Authority tab

The **Performance List** section features a grid that displays all the assessment instances. Each record includes the date and type of the assessment, the score of the assessment, and the designation assigned to the PHA based on the score. The **MOA Event or IP Event** and **Temp Office** columns are no longer applicable.

The **Assessment** score is derived from the **Risk Assessment** sub module. It determines the **Designation** assigned to a PHA, and whether the PHA needs to perform any corrective actions to improve their score.

1.1.1.6 Funding sub Tab

The **Funding** sub tab of the **Housing Authority** tab displays a PHA's grant data (see Figure 10). The **Housing Agency** sub module draws funding data from the HUD Central Accounting and Program System (HUDCAPS) and the Line of Credit Control System (LOCCS).



Figure 10: The Funding sub tab of the Housing Authority tab



The user can set the program to display the funding data based on the search criteria in the **Housing Authority Funding** section of the page. The **Funding Program Type** list allows the user to view the funding data only applicable to the Low Rent or Section 8 program types. If the user selects the **All** option, then the program will display the funding data applicable to both program types.

The **Grant Program Type** list allows the user to view funding data applicable only to the grant program type selected. The **Grants** list allows the user to select a specific type of grant received by the PHA. The **FY Returns** list allows the user to select the time frame for th funding data to be displayed.

1.1.2 HUD Staff Tab

The HUD Staff tab allows the user to view and edit the list of HUD staff members assigned to a PHA and their roles that these staff members perform for the PHA. The **List**sub tab of the **HUD Staff** tab displays the list of Field Office staff members assigned to a PHA and the roles that these staff members perform for the PHA they are assigned to (see Figure 11).

Autory HUD Self Ho Control	Diffee History Reports Area	d. IS			
rist Alternation	The second second				
Select View:	Field Office HA. + Select				
IIQ Office:	Public and Indian Housing				
HQ Division:	+O cid Operations + Balant				
Hale	A KNC Kenses City Hub 🗣 Select				
Field Office:	WHITRANSAS CITY HUB OFFICE	- Select			
Housing Authority:	IA003 Alton	- Relati			
HUD Salf List					
Records 1 to 2 of 2					
Staff a	Role +	Lifective Start Date	Office		
ivgmrd, bogap	Public Housing Revital Spelst	12/01/2008	7APH		
Veza, Vermova	PIC Croch	04/13/2006	7APH		

Figure 11: The List sub tab of the HUD Staff tab

The **List**sub tab of the **HUD Staff** tab features a grid that provides the following information: the name of the Field Office staff member assigned to the PHA selected, the role that this staff member performs for the PHA, the start date when the current assigned staff member started on the current role, and the code of the Field Office that the current staff member works at.

1.1.3 HA Contacts Tab

The **HA Contacts** tab allows the user to view and create PHA staff members records. The **List**sub tab of the **HA Contacts** tab allows the user to select a desired PHA, select the PHA staff members' status and view all the staff members that matched the selection criteria (see Figure 12). The user can select the staff member status in the **Contact Status** list. The user can select the **Active** status and the program will display the current contact staff members. The user can select the **Inactive** status and the program displays the inactive PHA contacts. If the user selects the **All** option, then the program will display the PHA contacts of both statuses.



List	The Monte Andrew State Andrew State		
Select View:	I old Chec IA + Select		
HQ Office:	Public and Indian Housing		
IQ Divisiou:	PO Field Operations	- Eelect	
Inb:	SHETW For Work Hub + Select		
ield Office:	SAPH FORT WORTH HUB OFFICE	- Seed	
loasing Authority:	1X003 LI Pase - Soli	120	
Rousing Authority Contact List	Actor -		Create Con
Receiving Anthrophy Contact List Contact Status: Records 1 to 6 of 6	Актис -		Create Con
Rousing Anthonity Contact Liet Contact Status: Records 1 to 6 of 6 Contact 4	Active - Kole	Phone Number	Create Con
amang (nuhority Cantod Liet Souhet Stahus: Becorde 1 to 6 of 6 Contact 4 Dinaskar, Satish	Active - Role Chief Financial Officer	Phone Number (915) \$19 3730	Crecte Co Email sbhaskarijsbacep.org
anang (nihority Cantod Liet Sodact Status: Ierarde 1 to 6 of 6 Contact 4 Diaskar, Satish Schon, Circald	Active - Role Chief Financial Officer Koscolike Diracker	Phone Number (915) 849-3730 (915) 849-3702	Crecto Con i Umall sbhaskanijsbacep.org geometicijstacep.org
amang (milinarity Cantor) List Soulact Status: Incards 1 to 6 of 6 Confect 4 Inaskar, Satish Arbon, Circuld Dien, Volanda	Active - Role Chief Financial Officer Koscative Diractor Coatact, IIA PIC Contact	Phone Number (915) \$19 0730 (915) 849-9702 (915) \$19 0768	Crecto Con Email sbhashan@bacep.org george@bacep.org ydion@bacep.org
Russing Anthonity Contact List Contact Status: Records 1 to 6 of 6 Contact 4 Dinastar, Satish Contact 4 Dinastar, Satish Contact 4 Dinastar, Satish Contact 4 Contact	Active - Role Chief Financial Officer Executive Director Contact, IIA PIC Contact Chief Operating Officer	Phone Number (915) 819 0730 (915) 849-9702 (915) 849-9703 (915) 849-9709	Crecto Con Email sbhaskan@bacep.org geograc@bacep.org ydion@bacep.org mbtamen@bacep.org
Receiving Anthrophy Contract List Contact Status: Records 1 to 6 of 6 Contact 4 Dinackar, Satish Contact 4 Dinackar, Contact 4 Dinackar, Satish	Active - Role Chief Financial Officer Executive Director Contact, IIA PIC Contact Chief Operating Officer Section 8 Director	Phone Number (915) 819 0730 (915) 849-9702 (915) 819 0768 (915) 849-9709 (915) 849 0852	Crecto Con Email sbhaskan@bacep.org <u>avanut@bacep.org</u> ydon@bacep.org mbranut@bacep.org bbrea@bacep.org

Figure 12: The List sub tab of the HA Contacts tab

The **Housing Authority Contact List** section features a grid that lists the PHA contact staff list and provides the following information: the contact name, role, phone number and email address. If the user selects the **All** option, then the program will also display the **Status** column indicating whether the staff member is active or inactive.

The name of the staff member in the **Contact** column is a link. When the user clicks the name of a contact, the program displays the contact details in the **Details** sub tab of the **HA Contacts** tab (see Figure 13). The **Details** sub tab displays all available details associated with the current contact and allow the user to add or modify existing data.

Authority HUD Staff HX Corra	Chica BA Hatory	Reports New Year Year	11 1044A	54) 541	
Ust	Dete	iliş i	Address	3	
IIQ Office:	Public and Indian House	ing			
HQ Division	PO Field Operations				
Hub:	6HFTW First Worth Buds				
Ridd Office	SAPIT FORT WORTH TIDE OFFICE				
Housing Authority:	TX003 FI Peso				
Housing Authority Contact Details					
				Andity Contact Details	
First Name:	Sadsh				
Last Name	Bhaskar				
Title	CEO				
Solutation	Mr.				
Phone: Number	(915) 049-3730				
For Norshan	(915) 049-3609				
TTY Number					
Email Address	sbhaskar@hacep.org				
e.					
Kale		Filective Date	Effective Full Date		
Chief Financial Officer		07/28/2008			

Figure 13: The Details sub tab of the Contacts tab

To add or modify contact details the user must click the **Modify Contact Details** link (see Figure 13). The program displays all the user information in editable controls. At this point, the user can update,



erase, or add contact details (see Figure 14). After the user modifies the details, the user must click **Save** to save the changes. If the user clicks **Cancel**, then the program will not retain the changes performed.

Housing HUD Sent IIA Contacts	Chica HA Halory Reports	New Derr Nos	N 1067	
Ust	Details		Address	
IIQ Office:	Public and Indian Housing			
HQ Division	FO Field Operations			
Hub:	6HETW Fort Worth Hols			
Fidd Office	SAPH FORT WORTH HUB OFFICE			
Housing Authority:	TX003 FI Paso			
lousing Authority Contact Details		010		
First Name:	Satsh	1 8 0		
Last Name	Bhaskar	1.6		
Title:	CIO	1.000		
Salutation:	Mt A	100		
Phone Number:	916 8/9 0/00 * Ext	1		
Fas Number	915 - 849 - 3609	133		
ITY Number	Ext	18		
unail Address	shhaskar@hecep.org			
Confirm Email Address:	sbhaskan@hacep.org			
	 Designates a required field. 			
				Cancel Save
Role	Effective Date		Effective Eud Date	
Chief Bironarol Offican	07/28/2008			
				Add Role

Figure 14: Modifying Contact Details

Automatical Hallo Start Hallon	Office	At History Reports	Trans. co Mico Biro Max	73		
tist	A CONVERSION	Details		Address		
HQ Office:	Public and	Indian liousing				
HQ Division:	PO Field Op	perutiona				
Huði	SHE DW Fort	Worth Ilub				
Field Office:	6APH FORT	WORTH HUB OFFICE				
Honoing Authority	1X000 LI Pa	150				
Housing Anthonity Contact Details	8					
HOLIZADARIAN						Weatry Contact Data I
First Name:	Setish					
Last Name:	Bhaskur					
Title:	cro					
Sabitation	Mr.					
Phone Pyumper:	(210) 010 37.	30				
Tax Number	laral wearan					
Email Address:	abluster St	DALLAND				
Role		Effective Date		Effe	ective End Date	
Chief Financial Officer		0772872008				
Accountant -		*M	VIDOVYYYY		MV/DOMYNY	
		Designates a re-	ouired field.			
					Cancel	Seve

Figure 15: Adding contact role

The user can also add a role for the PHA contact whose details are being modified. To add a role, the user must click **Add Role** link. Then, the program displays the available roles in form of a list in a **Role**



column. The user must select the new role in the **Role** list and enter a valid effective date in the **Effective Date** box. The user can also enter the effective end date, if applicable. To save the changes, the user must click **Save**. The program will not retain user modifications if the user clicks **Cancel**.

Housing HUD Staff	10 Contacts College BA Hallory Rep	to New Year You	10.547	
Ust	Detalls	- Constanting and the	Address	
IIQ Office:	Public and Indian Housing			
HQ Division	PO Field Operations			
Hub:	6HETW Fort Worth Hub			
Fidd Office	GAPILFORT WORTH HUD OF	CL		
Housing Authority:	TX003 FLPaser	102		
Housing Authority Address	s Information			
First Name:	Satish		Madfy Andess	c -
Last Name:	Bhuskar			T
Select Address Type:	Maing +			
Address Line 1:	5300 Fast Paisano Dr.			
Address Line 2:				
County Name:	FI Passo			
City/Locality:	FI Passo			
State:	Техня			
Zip Code:	70905			

Figure 16: Address sub tab

The **Address** sub tab of the **HA Contacts** tab displays the HA contact mailing and physical addresses (see Figure 16). This tab also allows a user to modify both addresses by clicking the **Modify Address** link. To modify an address, the user must select the type of address in the **Select Address Type** list, and then click the **Modify Address** link.

1.1.4 Temporary Office Tab

When a PHA is underperforming, this PHA has to be assigned to a different Field Office for improvement. This assignment can be viewed and created using the **Temporary Office** tab of the **Housing Agency** module (see Figure 17).

Users can see the temporary office assignments in the **Temporary Office Assignment List** section. This section features a grid that displays the name of the field office that the current PHA is assigned to, the date when the assignment started, the target end date (when the assignment is planned to end), actual end date (when the assignment actually ends), and the reason for the assignment.

elect View:	Field Office HA + Select			
IQ Office:	Public and Indian Housing			
IQ Division:	FO Field Operations		Select	
tule:	A KNC Kansas City Hub 🔷 👻	clock		
field Office:	WHITKANSAS CITY HUB OFFICE	-	Select	
Jousing Authority	14003 Alter	- Relati		

Figure 17: Temporary Office tab



1.1.5 HA History Tab

The **HA History** tab allows the user to view all the events that trigger data archival (see Figure 18). An event is considered to be any data change that requires a PHA data to be archived. For example, if a user changes the unit tenant status of any unit in the PHA, the program will archive the data before changes can take effect.

The **Housing Authority History** section features a grid that lists all the archival events and the search options that allow the user to view only certain archival events. The **Archive Date** column of the grid displays the day when the PHA data was archived. The **Archive Trigger** column of the grid displays the type of change that triggered the data archiving. The **Last Update User before Change** column displays the user name of the user who performed the data change that triggered the data archival.

elect View:	Field Office HA + Se	HIL			
IQ Office:	Public and Indian Ilous	Ing			
HQ Division:	POT reld Operations		- Select		
Hub:	/ IKNC Kansas City Flub	- Select			
field Office:	WPHIKANSAS CITY FIL	U OFFICE	- Sclect		
Iousing Authority:	IA003 ADou	- 1	Referc		
lousing Authority History					
Trigger: Al		Date:	to	MWDDYYYYY	Tetre
Records 1 to 10 of 10					32
MICHINE LIME	Ar	chive Inlager 🛦		la	st Uplate User Before Change
04/14/2008	Transition to New Developmen	t Number, Duilding Unit In	formation Approval		
06/27/2007	RokingA.	hit lukemation Approval			olik ignay
07/21/2006	DuidingU	ait Information Approval			ZWILLOVE VWZR
05/18/2006					
	DuidingU	ait Information Approval			dvaggan myvigh
04/19/2006	-	CANCEL VIA CLARK OF			Contraction and the second
64/19/2006 <u>64/19/2006</u>	BokingAJ	nii Information Approval			quadiavu anvelia

Figure 18: HA History Tab

The user can set the program to display only records of certain archive trigger type, and within a certain date range. To filter the records, the user must select the desired data changing (archival trigger) event and enter the desired date range in the **Date to** boxes using the MM/DD/YYYY format. After entering all the necessary data, the user must click **Retrieve**.

The date of the record in the **Archive Date** column is a link. If the user clicks any date, the program will display detailed historical record information in the **Details** sub tab of the **HA History** tab (see Figure 19). The user can view or print the historical record details from this sub tab.



Housing HUD Staff HA Contacts Office	HA History Reports New Dev Nos	
List	Details	
HQ Office:	Public and Indian Housing	
HQ Division:	PO Field Operations	
Hub:	7HKNC Kansas City Hub	
Field Office:	7APH KANSAS CITY HUB OFFICE	
Housing Authority History Details		
Archive Record Trigger:		Building/Unit Information Approval
Creation Date:		06/27/2007
HA Code:		14003
Common Name:		Afton Housing
Formal Name:		Afton Housing Commission
Organization Assignment:		
HA Program Type:		Low-Rent
Activity Status:		Active
HA FYE:		03/31
Executive Director:		Judy D. Chastain
Low Rent Development Projects:		0
Low Rent Development Units:		0
Low Rent Management Projects:		1
Low Rent Management Units:		30
Low Rent Total Projects:		1
Low Rent Total Units:		30
Last Modified User:		ofzk rphory

Figure 19: The Details sub tab of the HA History tab

1.1.6 Reports Tab

The **Reports** tab of the **Housing Agency** sub module allows the user to access four reports providing various types of information about a PHA (see Figure 20). The reports are presented as sub tabs that the user can access to run appropriate reports.

1.1.6.1 HA Report

The **HA Report** sub tab displays the two kinds of information: the HA address and cap fund data verification contact. The HA address information is drawn from the information that PHA staff members enter in the **Housing Authority** tab. The **Housing Authority Capital Fund Data Verification Contact** section displays the name of the person responsible for cap fund data verification.

The information presented on this page is read-only. Users cannot edit or delete any data from the **HA Report** sub tab.



Southy T see not The Contrasts T Services T	Mildelay Branch Augusta		
No Reput	HA Ministry	BA Data Link	M Public
Select View:	Fuld Office HA		
DQ Office:	Pollo and Indian Horning		
BQ Division:	151 Let Operation	- [South]	
These	1000 A Gentle Buts T	d.	
I feld Office:	DARH SEATTLE HUB OFFICE	· linkers	
Hensing Anthority:	AND ALL	* [!ielect]	
Liousing Authority Address			
Address Type	Hallep		
Adulte is Long 1	HO HER STREET		
Address Lane 2			
City:	ANCHORAGE		
Canady			
Status	Alf Alasha		
Z P Code	20540 - 1828		
Housing Ruthority Capital Fund Data Vertification Contact			
Contact Varies	Summ Agent		
Tide:	Coordinator, Program Support		
Saluadan	WS		
Phone Number:	(087) 308 - 8420 est		
No Having	party non-way		
H Mart Address	supervised and state at the		
Cantal Same	Manual James .		
Teller .	Developing Property Second		
Tal and an	115		
These Departures	CONTRACTOR DATE AND		
	Transferrary and the second		
an Humber	taul manages		
C-entraction and a second se	anbereichenen nachte		
mercanes that the contaction are macrice.	CONTRACTOR OF CONTRACT DEPENDENCES.		

Figure 20: Reports tab, HA Summary report

1.1.6.2 HA Summary Report

The **HA Summary** report displays unit data drawn from the **Development** sub module of the **Housing Inventory** module (see Figure 21). The user can see the total number of structures and units grouped by development, program type, structure type, etc. The data is read only, the user cannot edit or delete any information.

IIA Report	ceaus in the	116 Surrinery		IIA Contact List		ILA Profile
Select Vien:	Feld Office	HA + Sekat				
Q Omes:	Public and	Inter Hereing				
IQ Obtision:	PO Fuel O	ANAL AND	- Seket			
Inte	IN-SEA S	sale has a Select				
And Charles	The second		1 S.Leal			
Ten Limre:	DO-H 2E	U LE PUBUPPICE	+ 2003			
lousing Authority:	APPLY AL		M			
A Summary Second as of Berlin alay, April	14,300	255				
Development into			Index Lores			
370	1	2	11	21	40	70
		0			(2)	
hogram Type						
Concerning the second second	Line Doctored	sa Bele Net	Sedan 17 Band Francis	e - 1	alone 28 I search	Triby B
29		a:	94		- D	a
francisco studieta factoria	THE R	Big Dandradan	Seconductor Inter-	V Des Constantion Day	within the statement	Burgerund Belahildun burker
4	1	2	4	-15	4	a .
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A					1	
for all one fighter						
Cleaning Structure	Word Type	Ren or Tonnha	00.306	Sen Droched	Single Conthy Delach	ec Plakupi Matifanily Apariment
-10	- 6	24	0	· ·	0	4
		1.0				10-5
In address and Links		D				
in players Lante:		1				

Figure 21: Reports tab, HA Summary report



1.1.6.3 HA Contact List Report

The **HA Contact List** sub tab allows the user to run a report to view the PHA contacts (see Figure 22). To run the report, the user can use the report options to set the program to display only desired information. The user can select the desired contact role in the **Role** list. Then the program will include the PHA contacts that are associated with the selected role. The user can also search for a PHA contact by the first and/or last name of the contact. The **Contact Status** list allows the user to select the **Active** or **Inactive** contact status. If the user selects the **All** option, then the program would display contacts of both statuses and indicate the contact status in the **Status** column.

If the user clicks **By Field Office** button, then the program will display all the PHA contacts for all the PHAs associated with the Field Office selected. To run the report, the user must click the **Generate Report** button.

Housing HUE Galf HA Contacts	Disco H& History Reports	Transla New Dev Ner	1834- 1975
HA Report	HA Summary	HA Contact List	HA Profile
Select View:	I cld Office I IA + Select		
HQ Office:	Public and Indian Housing		
IIQ Division:	PO Field Operations	- Select	
IInd:	IOHSEA Seattle Hub 🔹 🕄	ele:1	
Field Office:	GACH SEATTLE HUB OFFICE	- Select	
Housing Authority:	AX001 ALL C	- Select	
llousing Contact Report Filters			2
Rele	Alfielas 👻		
Last Name:			
First Name:			
Contact Status	A1 +		
Dy Field Office			
		Generale Report	

Figure 22: HA Contact List report sub tab

The HA Contacts report lists PHA contacts and provides the following information (see Figure 23):

- The **Housing Authority** column displays the name of the PHA that the contacts are associated with. The user can click the column name and sort the contacts by PHA in an ascending or descending order.
- The **Contact Name** column displays the first and last names of the contacts. The user can click the column name and sort the contacts alphabetically in an ascending or descending order.
- The **Status** column indicates whether a contact is still active or inactive in the system. The user can click the column name and sort the contacts in accordance with their status.
- The **Role** column displays the role of the contact in the PHA. The user can click the column name and sort the contacts by their roles in an ascending or descending order.
- The **Email**, **Mailing Address**, **Physical Address**, **Phone Number** and **Fax** columns display various contact information for the PHA contacts.



IIA Contacts								<u>1</u>
							Select Page Se	1-1
Housing Antikestry	Contract Name	Status 	Rala	IMail	Mailing Address	Physical Address	Phone Number	Fax
New Orleans, 16	Cato- umor Koron	Attes	Toesan ve Director	keeto tumer#hano.ore			(504) 670- 5267 ext	(504) 285 s/st
New Orleans HA	of monitoria	Allwa	ficant Chuirpurson	dans.Johnson@hud.ooy	4100 Tours Street New Orleans Orleans Parish LA 70122		(504) 670- 5300 ex.	(104) 285 c/c

Figure 23: HA Contacts report

If the report is more than one page long, the program will allow the user to navigate to the desired page by selecting the page number in the **Select Page Set** list. The user can also print the report by clicking **Print**, or download report data in the Excel program by clicking the **Download in Excel** button.

1.1.6.4 HA Profile Report

The HA Profile report allows the user to view and print all PHA information drawn from the **Housing Authority** tab (see Figure 24). The information categories are presented in the **Category Selection** area. The user can select details, address, inventory, performance, or funding to be included in the report by selecting the appropriate check box.

Housing HUD Staff HA Contacts	Office HA Hatory Mysels New Day No.	Values Allow Science V	700
HA Report	HA Summary	HA Contact List HA Pro	dlie
Nelect View:	Lisid Ofice I A - Select		
HQ Office:	Public and Indian Housing		
IIQ Division:	PO Field Operations	- Select	
IIub:	ICHSEA Seate Hub - Select		
Tield Office:	BAPH SEATTLE HUB OFFICE	- Select	
Housing Authority:	AKUOT ALL C + Scled		
lousing Profile Report Filters			
Conceptry Solication	= Details = Address = Inventory = Performance	e = Funding	
	I Schot All		
		Generale Report	

Figure 24: HA Profile sub tab

To run the report, the user must click the Generate Report button.

1.1.7 Transferring to New development Numbers Tab

The **Trans. to New Dev Nos** tab allows the user to request to transfer a PHA to new development numbers and view the New Development Mapping report and Duplicate Building report (see Figure 25). Transferring to new development numbers for PHAs means development regrouping based on the way PHAs manage their developments. For example, if a PHA had three developments, but all of them were managed in the same way, the PHA could regroup them into one new development with a new development number that will include all buildings from all three previous developments.



Housing Authority	HUD Staff	HA Contacts	Temporary Office	HA History	Reports	Trans. to New Dev Nos	
Trans to	New Develop	ment Nos	New	Developmen	t Mapping R	eport	Duplicate Building Report
Select View:			Field Off	ce HA 👻 Se	elect		
HQ Office:			Public ar	nd Indian Hou	sing		
HQ Division:			PO Field	Operations	_		- Select
Hub:			10HSEA	Seattle Hub	✓ Sel	lect	
Field Office:			0APH SE	EATTLE HUB	OFFICE		Select
Records 1 to 4	1 of 41 HA Code			HA N	ame		
	HA Code			HA N	ame		
	AK001			AHFO	2		
	AK789			Test			
	ID001			Twin	Falls		
v	ID002			Nam	pa		
V	ID005			Poca	tello		
V	ID010			Buhl			
v	ID011			Jeron	ne		
V	ID012			Ame	rican Falls		
v	ID013			Boise	e City		
	ID016			SICH	A		

Figure 25: Transferring to New Development Numbers tab

1.1.7.1 New Development Mapping Report sub Tab

PHAs can see the transfer process results in the New Development Mapping report (see Figure 26). To run the report, the user must select the desired PHA in the **Housing Authority** list and click **Generate Report** button.

To select the PHA, the user must select the appropriate HQ Division, Hub, and Field Office.

Trans to New Development Nos	New Development Happing Report	Duplicate Building Report
HQ Office:	Public and Indian Housing	
IIQ Division:	PO Field Operations	- Relect
IIub:	10HSEA Seattle Public + Select	
Field Office:	CAPH SEATTLE HUB OFFICE	Select
Housing Anthonity:	Akton Al I C - Select	
		_
		Селение Веро

Figure 26: New Development Mapping report sub tab

The New Development Mapping report maps old development numbers to new developments numbers. This way, if the user is looking for a development after transferring to the new development numbers, the user can see where the old development was transferred. The report also includes the building numbers, date the transfer was requested, date the transfer was completed, the transfer indicator (whether the development numbers were transferred to the new development numbers), and the status of transfer.



	New Development Mapping Report						
HQ	Office:	Public and Indian	Housing				
HQI	Division:	PO Field Operation	ons				
Hub	17	5HCLV Cleveland	l Hub				
Field	Office:	5CPH CINCINNA	TI COMMUNITY	SERVICE CENTER			
Hou	sing Authority:	OH004 CINCINN	ATI MHA				
Records 1 - 50 of 1132 (View All) << Prev page 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Next Page >> Select page set:					set: 1-10 👻		
#	New Development No.	Old Development No.	Building No.	Date Requested.	Date Completed.	Transition Indicator.	Status.
1	OH004000209	OH004001	0151	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
2	OH004000209	OH004001	0150	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
3	OH004000209	OH004001	0149	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
4	OH004000209	OH004001	0148	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
5	OH004000209	OH004001	0147	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
6	OH004000209	OH004001	0146	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
7	OH004000209	OH004001	0145	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
8	OH004000209	OH004001	0144	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
9	OH004000209	OH004001	0143	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
10	OH004000209	OH004001	0142	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
11	OH004000209	OH004001	0141	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
12	OH004000209	OH004001	0140	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed
13	OH004000209	OH004001	0139	2008-04-13 00:00:00	2008-04-14 03:30:50	Y	Completed

The user can print the report data by clicking the **Print** button, or download the data in the Excel program as a spreadsheet by clicking the **Download in Excel** button.

1.1.7.2 Duplicate Building Report sub Tab

The **Duplicate Building Report** sub tab allows the user to run the Duplicate Building report (see Figure 28). Duplicate buildings are considered actual buildings with the same building number within merging developments that transfer to new development numbers.

Autory Hot and Hot convers	New Development Reports Report	Complicate Building Report
Select View: IIQ Office: HQ Division:	Field Office HA + Select Public and Indian Housing POT old Operations	+ Scient
Huli: Field Office:	10 ISLA Scatte Lub + Salest WARTSLATTLE TUB OTTOE	- Select
Nousing Authority:	ACOLAFEC - Select	
		Generate Report

Figure 28: Duplicate Building Report sub tab

For example, a PHA has development A and development B. Both these developments will be transferred to development C. However, development A and development B both have building 1 as part of their inventory. So, during transfer, building 1 from development A remains the same, and the number of building 1 form development B changes to b_1 to avoid duplicate number.



To run the Duplicate Building report, the user must select the desired PHA and click the **Generate Report** button.

The Duplicate Building Mapping report allows the user to see the old building number and the new building number that was assigned to that building (see Figure 29). It also displays the new development number that the building is assigned to.

The user can print the report data by clicking the **Print** button, or download the data in the Excel program as a spreadsheet by clicking the **Download in Excel** button.

	Duplic	ate Building Mapping F	Report Download in Excel Print		
HQ Offic	e: Public and Ir	dian Housing			
HQ Divis	sion: PO Field Op	PO Field Operations			
Hub:	lub: 2HNYC New York City Hub				
Field Office: 2APH NEW Y		NEW YORK CITY HUB OFFICE			
Housing	Authority: NY005 New	York City HA			
#	Development Number.	Old Building Number.	New Building Number.		
1	NY005012090	209001	B_0001		
2	NY005012090	209001	B_0002		
3	NY005012090	209001	B_0003		
4	NY005012090	209001	B_0004		
5	NY005012090	209001	B_0005		
6	NY005012090	209001	B_0006		
7	NY005012090	209002	B_0007		

Figure 29: Duplicate Building Mapping report